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Pre-Proposal Conference for In-School Youth Program 
November 20, 2007 

 
Solicitation DCCF-2008-R-0002 

 
December 12, 2007 

Questions Submitted via Email 
 
1. Ques: Two of the positions in section C.4.2.13.5 are Job Developer and Job Coach.  This 
seems skewed toward the job outcomes, but the Solicitations calls for four outcomes, only one of 
which is employment.  Does the government intend to revise the position descriptions so that 
they are more in line with the desired outcomes? 
 
Ans:  At minimum, the Government considers the positions specified in the RFP as key 
personnel, in addition to what the Offeror proposes. 
 
2. Ques: The eligible youth definitions in C.2.14 and C.4.1.4 are different.  Can the 
Government clarifies as to which eligible youth definition is correct? 
 
Ans: Both are correct.  Section C.4.1.4 describes some of the youth that are included in the 
profile for C.2.1.4. 
 
3. Ques: Is the Offeror required to provide this "diploma granting alternative environment" 
referenced in section C.4.1.3?  If so, can the government provide more information on what is 
required. 
 
Ans: Yes, alternative learning environments are accredited by the District’s State Education 
Office and Education Licensure Commission that are authorized to issue a high school diploma 
or general equivalency diploma (GED) through non-traditional settings in line with the No Child 
Left Behind legislative. 
 
4. Ques:  In section C.4.1.1, the solicitation references a summer component, but does not 
provide a timeframe for the summer component.  What are the dates for the summer component? 
 
Ans: The summer component will be administered in conjunction with the District’s Summer 
Youth Program.  It is anticipated that the Summer Program will operate for ten weeks however, 
specific date will be provided to successful offerors at a later time. 
 
5. Ques: Section L.2.2 does not specify a page number length or spacing, i.e. double spaced 
or single spaced.  Could the government provide this information? 
 
Ans: There is no page limits.  The proposal should be single space. 
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6. Ques:  Section G.4.1.3 states that the CLIN is payable "after the participant completes 
the training program.  Will the government pay invoices monthly? based upon costs incurred or 
progress toward completion? 
 
Ans:  No, successful proposals will not result in a cost reimbursement contract. Please refer to 
Page 2, Section B.2 of the RFP. 
 
7. Ques:  In Section G.4.1.4 can the government state what is meant by the "program year"? 
 
Ans:  The program year will be one (1) year from Date of Award. 
 
8. Ques:  In Section C.4.4.1 the solicitation states that the contractor should obtain a High 
School Diploma or GED. Certain special education students receive a Certificate of 
Individualized Educational Programs.  Shouldn't C.4.4.1 be revised to include the Certificate of 
Individualized Educational Program? 
 
Ans:  No.  The Certificate of Individual Education program will suffice.  
 
9. Ques: My question about this RFP is that our organization Perry School has recently 
applied for the Transitional Employment Services grant offered by your agency. I attended the 
Pre-conference and as it relates to key staff if awarded the grant can we share some of the same 
key staff on both grants if the budgets could be revised to document that occurrence? 
 
Ans:   No. Each Key staff person should be unique to that particular contract effort. 
 
10. Ques:  Does the D.O.E.S. administer the CASAS prior to the youth beginning the In-
School program, and are the results forwarded to the Contracting Organization prior to the start 
of the program? 
 
11. Ans: The Office of Youth Programs administers the CASAS Appraisal and Pre-test 
assessment to perspective participants. Once a participant becomes enrolled with the Provider all 
assessment information will be forwarded to the successful offerors.  However, it is 
recommended that the successful offerors incorporate additional assessment instruments into 
their evaluations.  The CASAS’ Appraisal and Pre-test assessments are only providing a snap 
shot of an individual’s basic skill level.  
 
12. Ques: Although the RFP states that contractor is paid when the youth completes training 
can the contractor submit monthly invoices and be reimbursed for those monthly invoices? 
 
Ans: Contractors can submit invoices monthly by the 5th work day for benchmarks accomplished 
the previous month, unless otherwise specified in the RFP.  For example, benchmarks achieved 
in November can be invoiced for in December. 
 
13. Ques: Can invoices be submitted bi-weekly? 
 
Ans: No. 
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14. Ques: Are there a maximum amount of pages for the Proposal? 
 
Ans:  See answer to Question 5. 
 
 
 
15. Ques: Is there a minimum number of hours to be provided during summer component?  Is 
so, what is the minimum? 
 
Ans:  Minimum 20 hours per week for youth ages 14 and 15; and Minimum 30 hours per week 
for youth ages 16 through 18. 
 
16. Ques: Can you please clarify the residence requirements (e.g. target neighborhoods) for 
youth in the program.  Are there specific percentages required? 
 
Ans:  A youth must be a District of Columbia resident to receive services.  Also, Section C.2.14 
(c) addresses targeted neighborhoods and there are no percentage requirements.  
 
17. Ques: Do each of the key personnel positions below have to be a separate person (e.g. can 
Retention Specialist and Job Coach function be carried out by the same person)?  Program 
Director, Job Developer, Case Manager Supervisor Job Coach, and Placement/Retention 
Specialist.  
 
Ans: No. The Government realizes that duties and responsibilities overlap for several positions. 
 
18. Ques: Regarding the budget forms for year 1 and optional years (B2.2. and 2.3),  is there 
a cap per client as there was in the Transitional Employment Program solicitation, and if not, is 
there a total budget allocation for the solicitation?  
 
Ans:   The total estimated budget allocation for the RFP DCCF-2008-R-0002 In-School Youth 
Year Round Program is $2 million dollars. 
 
19. Ques: For line item G.4.1.3, it states the Program Design and Training Service/Activities 
will be payable after the participant completes the training.  Does this mean upon them 
graduating for training sessions each month? 
 
Ans: No, successful proposals will not result in a cost reimbursement contract.  Please refer to 
Page 2, Section B.2 of the RFP. 
 
20. Ques: Section G.4.1.5 states payment will be authorized upon receipt of High School 
Diploma or GED for the participant.  How is that budgeted when we will have participants as 
young as age 14?  Does this mean we will not get paid for servicing these youth until they 
graduate? (unclear). 
 
Ans:  Contractors will receive their initial payment based on enrollment. The contract requires 
that all participants receive a high school diploma or GED. Payments made after the initial 
payment will be based on the performance measures outlined in the contract.    
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21. Ques: Given the fiscal partnership, are there any additional procedures or amendments 
that we should be sure to include as we move forward in submitting our proposal? 
 
Ans:  No. 
 
22. Ques: What is your maximum unit range for budget or price proposal purposes?  
 
Ans:  The District has not established any minimum or maximum unit prices.  Each offeror is 
free to propose their best pricing. 
 
23. Ques: Can services for the DC youth be provided in neighboring counties such as 
Montgomery, Prince Georges and Arlington? (Facility where the training will take place) 
 
Ans: Youth are allowed to travel outside a 25-mile radius of the District of Columbia with prior 
written parental consent.  
 
24. Ques: Are there minimum financial requirement/status for each vendor proposing to 
conduct business? 
 
Ans:  Yes.  See Section L.24 Standards of responsibility.  These requirements will be requested 
from those offerors to receive an award. 
 
25. Ques: Are the youth participants paid a minimum wage salary by the district government 
for the amount of hours they participate in our program? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
26. Ques: Can the youth have employment while in the program and get paid for 
participating and their job? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
27. Ques: During the summer, will the youth be paid the 20 - 30 hours per week minimum 
wage for participation by the district government?  Will this program act as their place of 
employment? 
 
Ans: Yes to both questions. 
 
28. Ques: What exactly does the 5 million dollar insurance policy cover?  Please explain 
exactly what and who the professional liability insurance covers?  
 
Ans: See Section I.8.1 for the insurance requirements.  
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29. Ques: When or how long will you require vendors to show proof of the 5 million 
insurance policies? 
 
Ans: See Section I.8.1 for the insurance requirements.  
 
30. Ques: What is the proposed award date of this proposal? 
 
Ans:  OCP anticipates making awards during the month of February 2008.  
 
31. Ques: What assessments are acknowledged by your agency, when assessing students with 
their academic levels and career assessments or can we use any we choose? 
 
Ans: Presently, the Office of Youth Programs utilizes the CASAS test for its assessments, and  
Recognizes four (4) basic skills assessment tools: TABE, CASAS, Work Keys, and ABLE 
These are the only basic skills assessment tools that will be recognized by the Office of Youth 
Programs. However, any career or social assessment tools used in conjunction with one of the 
aforementioned basic skills assessments are strongly encouraged.  
 
32. Ques: In the case a child who is receiving special education services, can a recent (1-2 
years maximum), IEP and any other information regarding any other psycho-educational 
test(s)/assessments serve as a substitute for the child’s basic math and reading assessments?  
 
Ans: . A new assessment of a participant is not required if the successful offeror has a recent  
assessment data (not older than one year ) from the entity that has deemed the individual as 
having special needs.  
 
33. Ques: All of the DOES approved assessments (TABE 9/10 ABLE, Work Keys, CASAS), 
require personnel receive training in order to administer to youth; is this required cost an 
allowable item?  
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
34. Ques: Is follow- up period for a student who has completed the program through 
graduation, moving outside of the district, incarceration, or incapacitation, a 9 or 12 month 
period?  
 
Ans:  The follow-up period is twelve (12) months in duration. If the participant moves outside of 
the District to attend college, the prospective contractor is still obligated to track the participant’s 
activities. In the case of incarceration or incapacitation, the participant may be exited provided 
the proper documentation and timeframe meet the exit criteria.   
 
35. Ques: What steps will be taken in order to notify a provider that an incoming student has 
a learning/academic, and/or social exceptionality? 
 
Ans:  There is no legal requirement for a participant to disclose his/her disability. If any 
information that a participant or family member presents during the enrollment period, that 
information will be forwarded to the contracting agency.   
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36. Ques: Will the parents of children with exceptionalities be required to provide the site 
holder with information regarding the child’s exceptionality?  
 
Ans:  A parent is not required to provide the contracting agency with any information regarding a 
participant’s disabilities. However, it is strongly encouraged to inform the family or its members 
that any information that may aid in the assessment of a participant be shared with the Provider.  
 
37. Ques: If a site holder is sent a child with exceptionalities, and feels as though they are 
unable to provide the child with services, what is the procedure to notify DOES and the child that 
they are unable to be served at the site. 
 
Ans: It is strongly recommended that every Provider meet ADA standards and guidelines.  
However, the contracting agency has a one week period to notify the Office of Youth Programs 
if they are unable to provide services for any youth referred.  
 
38. Ques: How many parts should the proposal be submitted in?  Page 48 of the Bid 
document is confusing.  
 
L.2.4 Proposals shall be organized and presented in the following three (3) separate parts: 
 
L.2.4.1  Part 1 Technical Proposal 
 
L.2.4.1.2 Table of Contents 
L.2.4.1.3 Technical Approach 
L.2.4.1.4 Technical Expertise 
 
L.2.4.2  Part 2 Past performance 
 
L.2.4.2.1 Experience Questionnaire 
 
L.2.4.3  Part 3 Price Proposal 
 
L.2.4.3.1 Section B – Supplies or Services and Price 
L.2.4.3.2 Cost/Price Data Information 
 
L.2.4.4  Part 4 Representations, Certifications and other  Statements of Offeror 
 
L.2.4.4.1 Section K – Representations, certifications  

and other statements 
L.2.4.4.2 LSDBE Certification  
L.2.4.4.3 E. E. O. Information  
L.2.4.4.4 Tax Certification Affidavit 
L.2.4.4.5 First Source Employment Agreement 
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39. Ques: Is past performance a separate part of the proposal submission or should it be a part 
of the Technical Proposal Submission?  
 
Ans:  Yes, it should be apart of the technical proposal.  See Section L2.4 
 
40. Ques: Are youth with Green Cards or Temporary residency allowed to participate in the 
services? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
41. Ques: Please provide more clarity for the Contract Line Item No. completion.  What 
number should go in the total price column if the applicants are to give a calculation for both a 
Minimum Quantity and a Maximum Quantity?  
Ans:  In the Minimum column, just the unit price is required.  However, in the maximum 
column, the unit price and the total amount for the maximum quantity is required. 
 
For Example Only: 

 

Contract 
Line 
Item No. 
(CLIN) 

ITEM 
DESCRIPTION 

UNIT MIN 
QTY  

PRICE 
PER 
UNIT 

MAX 
QTY  

PRICE 
PER 
UNIT 

TOTAL  
PRICE 

0001 
C.4.1 

Program Design and 
Training 
Services/Activities 

 
 
 
Each 

 
 
 
25 

 
 
 
$1,000.00 

 
 
 
75 

 
 
 
$1,000
.00 

 
 
 
$75,000.00 

 
42. Ques: Which line item will include the cost for the summer program? 
 
Ans: Contract Line Item (CLIN) 0001. 
 
43. Ques: Do you have a list of which assessment tools you want used for C.4.1.7.? 
 
Ans: . The Department of Employment Services recognizes the following assessments: 
CASAS, TABE, ABLE, Work Keys assessment instruments that are all recognized by the US  
Department of Labor. 
 
44. Ques: Can youth participating under this program also be employed through the summer 
Youth employment program? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
45. Ques: How will the contractor be compensated for the activities listed in C.4.5.4.? 
 
Ans: This cost should be part of the program’s design. 
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46. Ques: Is there a page number limit on the proposal submission for each section? 
 
Ans:  See answer to Question 5. 
 
47. Ques: How should proposals be formatted? (single space, double space . . .) 
 
Ans:  See answer to Question 5. 
 
48. Ques: Which part of the proposal submission should contain the appendices/attachments? 
 
Ans: See Section L.2.4 Proposals shall be organized and presented in the following three (3) 
separate parts: 
 
49. Ques:   Are letters of support required or recommended? 
 
Ans:  They can be apart of your past performance  
 
50. Ques: Can the applicant subcontract some of the services? 
 
Ans: Yes, see Section I, I.7. 
 
51. Ques: If subcontracting is OK, what information about the subcontractor needs to be 
submitted with the proposal? 
 
Ans:  See Section I, I.7 
 
52. Ques: How many Awards will be made under this solicitation? 
 
Ans:  The District has not established a set number of awards for this procurement. 
 
53. Ques: Can applicants collaborate with other entities to deliver services? 
 
Ans: Yes, subject to approval of the District. 
 
54. Ques: Who will review the applications (internal review or external review committee) 
and make the award determinations?  
 
Ans:  YASHA Williams  
 
55. Ques: Is it intended to get the program/contract on either a July or September start date, 
or will the program always have an enrollment/new cycle date in January or February? 
Ans:   This will be determined prior to contract award. 
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56. Ques: In this IDIQ contract is supporting documentation required for “backup” of the 
costs? 
 
Ans: Yes, prospective contractors will be informed of the required documentation during the post 
award conference. 
 
57. Ques: Is an audit required for the program? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
58. Ques: Is there a deadline for the service provider to reach full enrollment? 
 
Ans: 30 days after Date of Award. 
 
59. Ques: Is the follow-up 9 or 12 months as both timelines are referenced in the solicitation? 
 
Ans: The successful offeror must provide a minimum of 12 months follow-up. 
 
60. Ques: Is the Service provider expected to provide the Summer Component or is this 
included in the services provided by DOES? 
 
Ans: The prospective contractor is required to provide the summer component to youth enrolled 
in its In-School year round program. 
 
61. Ques: Are all wages for the In-School as well as the Summer Component paid for by 
DOES? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
62. Ques: If the wages are paid by DOES, do we need to include these in our budget? 
  
Ans: No. 
 
63. Ques: What is the wage/stipend for the In-School and summer component? 
 
Ans:  The training stipend is $5.00 per hour during the school year and summer components of 
the In-School Program.   It is not a wage but a stipend. This could possibly be increased to a 
stipend of $6.00 per hour if the resources are available.  
 
64. Ques: Is profit allowed, if so, should this be spread across all CLIN’s, is there a limit to 
the % of profit? 
 
Ans: Yes.   The application of and the percentage of profit should be applied in accordance 
with acceptable accounting principles.   
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65. Ques: Is G&A allowable, again, if so, is there a limit/cap? 
 
Ans: Yes.   The application of and the percentage of profit should be applied in accordance with 
acceptable accounting principles.   
 
66. Ques: Are incentives $25-$100 range allowed for the student’s achieving predetermined 
goals? 
 
Ans: Yes.  
 
67. Ques: With regards to past performance, can we just list the one contract that we have 
with DOES?  I'm asking this because the contract has been modified and there have been 
summer contracts through modifications and RFPs, but they all seemed to have stemmed from 
the original contract that we signed in 2003. 
 
Ans: the past performance requirement is for you to submit a least three references. They do 
not have to be with the District government.  The references however, must be for the same or 
similar work performed in the past five years. 
 
68. Ques: When we submit the prices for the option years, do we have to include what 
programming would take place in the option years or can it be assumed that the programming in 
the option years would be along the lines of the programming submitted in the technical proposal 
for year one (base year)? 
 
Ans:   The option years prices should be based on the same program as the base year. 
  
69. Ques: When we outline the unit cost for CLIN 4.1-4.6 should we break up the total cost for 
one participant into these particular areas so that the items add up to total cost that is on the 
budgetattachment? 
 
Ans:  Yes. 
 
70. Ques: If we are writing a proposal for 40 students can we just complete the boxes for 40 
students or do we have to do for 40 (proposed number) and 75 (maximum number)? 
 
Ans:  Yes.  In the maximum column put 40. 
 
71. Ques: Is there a maximum page limit for the technical proposal and can we submit 
attachments to the proposal? 
 
Ans:  See answer to Question 5. 
 
72. Ques: We provide a snack and dinner daily as part of our program.  Can these costs be 
incorporated into our budget proposal as allowable costs under the contract? 
 
Ans:  No, only if the items are provided in conjunction with training. 
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73. Ques: We understand that you have 10th, 11th and 12th graders. However, will be allowed 
to give preference of age groups to service? For example can we propose to only serve 10th and 
11th graders? 
 
Ans: No. 
 
74. Ques: Regarding CLIN 3 &4, if we do not have any seniors then how does this pertain to 
us? Will DOES send each contractor youth from a range of age groups (freshman, sophomores, 
juniors and seniors)? If so, how many seniors can we expect to receive? We need to know this 
information in order to develop a budget for various age groups we might receive. For example if 
we do not know the number of seniors to expect, then how can we provide a total price in the 
price schedule for CLIN 0003, 0004 or 0005? 
 
Ans:  It is impossible to predict the number of participants from each grade level that will be 
referred to a successful offeror. Upon award, the Office of youth Programs will refer perspective 
participants from various grade levels to different contracting agencies.  It is the programs 
preference to refer only 10th, 11th, and 12th graders?  
 
75. Ques: Is DOES anticipating that we would start with freshman and track them through all 
four years of high school? 
 
Ans:  The successful offeror will be responsible for tracking their participants until each one 
makes an outcome.   For freshmen (9th grade students), an organization must track the activities 
of that participant until he/she makes an outcome.   
 
76. Ques: Is there a maximum dollar level per participant (per other RFP’s)? 
 
Ans:   No. 
 
77. Ques: Pg 11, C.4.1.3: “diploma granting alternative learning environment”. What does 
DOES mean by this? Can we assume that DOES is not asking us to provide GED services for the 
youth? 
 
Ans: See response no. 3 
 
78. Ques: Pg 12, C.4.1.4: based on the paragraph can we assume that high school graduation 
and movement into a post-secondary institution (i.e. college) is the primary objective. Thus 
would employment, military and advanced training be secondary objectives? 
 
Ans:  Yes, as well as  well as employment, military and advanced training.   
 
79. Ques:  Can we assume that participants are paid during their time in the program and that 
we would submit timesheets like we do in the summer? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
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80. Ques:  How are contractors paid? For example if we have 75 youth, how do we invoice 
for services on a monthly basis? For example how can DOES determine that contractors have 
met their obligation to CLIN0001 when we will be implementing these types of activities 
throughout the year on a regular monthly basis? 
 
Ans:  See Section G, G.4 for the payment schedule. 
 
81. Ques:  Based on the performance measure in CLIN0003 (Price Schedule), it would 
appear that a contractor would not be paid for its work with seniors until after the youth have 
graduated from school. This would mean that a contractor would provide services for an entire 
school year without any payment. Could you please clarify this performance measure as it 
pertains to when payment will be received based on the fixed price schedule? 
 
Ans:  See Section G, G.4 for the payment schedule. 
 
82. Ques:  Based on the activities slated for CLIN 0004 and 0005 (Price Schedule), could you 
please explain how and when contractors will be paid? 
 
Ans:  See Section G, G.4 for the payment schedule. 
 
83. Ques:  Regarding the Price Schedule, what figure is DOES expecting to see in the column 
labeled “Total Price”? Would that be the same as the same as 75 participants x Cost per 
participant? 
 
Ans: Yes. 
 
84. Ques:  During the proposal conference, it was stated that contractors should provide 
participants with summer work experience. Could you please delineate the number of weeks and 
hours (minimum and maximum) per week that participants are expected to work during this 
summer work experience? 
 
Ans: See response no. 4. 
 
85. Ques:  The proposal says that DOES want assessments for each participant. We have 
developed our own assessments for youth. Can we use our assessments to fulfill this requirement 
or is the contractor expected to use a DOL-approved assessment? 
 
Ans:  Successful Offerors will be required to use one of the four (4) Department of Labor 
recognized assessment tools (CASAS, TABE, ABLE, Work Keys) for basic skills assessments. 
Also, it is encouraged that any successful offeror incorporates other assessment instruments into 
their evaluations; instruments that measure social, career and life skills development.   
 
 


